
OREGON CITY HISTORIC RESOURCE SURVEY FORM

Street Address: 411 3RD ST City: OREGON CITY

USGS Quad Name: Oregon City

Township: 02S Range: 02E Section: 31 Tax Lot #: 10700

Date of Construction:

c. 1879

Historic Name:

Ross, H.W. and Lucinda, House

*Current Name or Use:

Domestic - duplex

Associated Archaeological Site:

Unknown

Plan Type/Shape: L-shaped Number of Stories: 2.0

Foundation Material: Concrete block Structural Framing: Unknown

Roof Type/Material: Gable / Wood shake

Exterior Surface Materials Primary: Channel drop Secondary: Wood shingle Decorative:

Window Type/Material: 1/1 wood double-hung

Exterior Alterations or 
Additions/Approximate Date:

Rear wing

Historic Use or Function:

Domestic - single dwelling

Latitude: 45 21 14 N Longitude: 122 36 33 W

Moved? No

Number and Type of Associated Resources: 6 unit garage; single car garage   (2)

Grouping or Cluster Name:

NA

Architectural Classification(s): Queen Anne

GPS

Integrity: Good Condition: Good Local Ranking: Designated Historic Site

Potentially Eligible:

Not Eligible:

National Register Listed? No

Description of Physical and Landscape Features:

This two story residence sits under a cross gable roof, with a hip roof at the southeast corner covering a two story porch.  The hip is supported at 
the corner by turned columns with a scroll cut balustrade enclosing the porches (one at each floor).  The gables feature enclosed eaves with wide 
frieze and rake boards and decorative barge molding.  On the south side, a rectangular bay projects out at the first floor level, covered by a hip 
roof.  This bay features chamfered pilasters between the windows and pendants at the corners below a sawtooth frieze.  The house is primarily 
clad with horizontal drop siding, finished with cornerboards, but the gable ends are clad with octagonal shingle imbrication above the window 
heads.  The windows are all tall 1/1 double-hung wood sashes, and the gable end windows have arched hoods with a sunburst pattern in the 
blind transom.  The foundation has been recently skirted with plywood under the full water table.

Two garages are associated with this house.  The smaller of the two, located to the northeast of the house, is a front gable garage clad with drop 
siding and featuring two casement windows on the west side and a pair of out-swinging doors on the south side.  A large six-car garage is 
located along the east edge of the lot.  This garage sits under a shallow shed roof that is hidden by a gabled parapet with large intermediate piers 
that divide the garage into three bays.  The doors on this garage are all paired out-swinging doors, with three square panels over three 
rectangular panels.  The garage is clad with rounded drop siding.

Statement of Significance:

In 1898, H.W. and Lucinda Ross purchased this property and are assumed to have constructed the residence.  In 1903, Mrs. Ross, as a widow, 
transferred ownership to Fred Eckhoff, who in turn deeded to Charles A. Baxter in 1912.  Mr. Baxter was a millwright at the CWP Company, who 
occupied the house with his wife, Grace D.  In 1934, the couple sold the property to Thomas Blackburn.   However, according to city directories, 
the house was occupied by Charles Blackburn, an employee of the Clackamas County shops, his wife Minnie, as well as Gloria Blackburn, who 
worked for the M&F Company.  In 1950, the residence was purchased by K.V. and Gladys Woodward, who appear to have used it as a rental 
during their 20-year ownership.  Their tenants included Paul E. Scully, a Crown Zellerbach employee, and his wife Pauline;  Harold F. Bostic, a 
bookkeeper at H.D. Drug Company, and his wife Dorris; and Barbara Walhert, a 10-year occupant.
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Reversible/Potentially eligible individually or in district

Irretrievable loss of integrity

Intact but lacks distinction

Not 50 years old

Individually     or As a contributing resource in a district
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